
 

DISTRICT BOARD  

Megan Clark 

Rabi Elias 

Russ Greenfield 

Craig K. Murray 

Judy Schriebman 

 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Chris DeGabriele,  
Interim General Manager 

Michael Cortez,  
District Engineer 

Mel Liebmann, 

Plant Manager 

Susan McGuire,  
Administrative Services Manager 

Greg Pease,  
Collection System/Safety Manager 

 

 

  
 

300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to 
protect public health and the environment by providing effective 
wastewater collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

May 24, 2018    4:30 PM 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 300 SMITH RANCH ROAD, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

2. REVIEW OF PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Staff to present the following proposed budgets for the fiscal year July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

A. Revenue Budget 

B. Operation and Maintenance Budget 

C. Capital Outlay Budget 

D. Debt Service Budget 

E. Reserve Budget 

Staff recommendation: Additional review of preliminary FY 2018-19 budget in advance of consideration 

 at the June 14
th
 Public Hearing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4:30 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:35 PM 



May 24, 2018 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a 

request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for May 10, 2018. 

B. Approve the Warrant List for May 24, 2018. 

C. Approve EOA Contract Proposal for July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

D. Approve Interim General Manager Authority to Approve Maintenance Services for the BioCNG 
Digester Gas Conditioning Equipment Package. 

E. Approve Award of Contract for UV Piping Repair to Gregory Equipment Inc. 

F. Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite. 

G. Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite.  

H. Approve SCADA Support Services Agreement with ArcSine Engineering for FY 2018-19. 

I. Approve Bid Award to Custom Tractor Service for Biosolids Removal and Surface Injection  

for FY Year 2018-2019.    

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Items  B - I 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through I. 

 
4. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

A. STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. Interim General Manager Report – Verbal 

2. Monthly Treasurer Report – Written 

 

B. BOARD REPORTS: 

1. Human Resources Subcommittee – Verbal 

2. LAFCO - Verbal 

3. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council – Verbal 

4. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal 

5. NBWA – Written  

6. NBWRA/North Bay Water – Verbal  

7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal 

8. Other Reports – Verbal 

5. BOARD REQUESTS: 

A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

6. VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 

 

5:20 PM 

 

5:50 PM 

 

5:55 PM 

 

5:05 PM 

 



May 24, 2018 Page 3 of 3 
  

  

  
 

300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, District Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before May 21, 2018, at 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held May 24, 2018, at the District Office, located at 300 Smith Ranch 
Road, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: May 21, 2018 
 
 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
District Secretary 

  _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the second and fourth Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 300 Smith Ranch Road,  
San Rafael. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 
 
 

 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig Murray,   Board Vice President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:00 PM 

 
 



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

2018-2019 Proposed Budgets 

Agenda item 2
May 24, 2018

2.1



DISTRICT BOARD  

Megan Clark 

Rabi Elias 

Russ Greenfield 

Craig K. Murray 

Judy Schriebman 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Chris DeGabriele  
Interim General Manager 

Michael Cortez,  
District Engineer 
Mel Liebmann, 
Plant Manager 
Susan McGuire,  
Administrative Services Manager 
Greg Pease,  
Collection System/Safety Manager 

May 24, 2018 

To the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

The management staff of the District is pleased to present to the Board the 2018/19 Proposed 
Revenue, Operating and Maintenance Expense, Debt Service, Reserve Funding, and Capital 
Outlay Budgets for review. These budgets reflect the District’s progress in the five year capital 
improvement plan adopted by the Board in June 2015 for the 2016 through 2020 fiscal years.   

Operating Revenue is expected to increase by $468,050 primarily from a $31 increase in the 
sanitary sewer service charge from $867 to $898 per equivalent dwelling unit.  Interest income 
is expected to decrease as funds are expended on capital projects as discussed below. 

Operating and Maintenance costs are expected to increase over the prior year budget by 
$112,011 or 1.76%.  Staffing levels are projected to increase by one full time equivalent.  Staff 
has also budgeted for overlap between an interim and a permanent General Manager. Repairs 
and maintenance in FY2018 included two larger projects which will be completed prior to 
FY2019 resulting in the budget decreasing by $191,950; funding for the lateral assistance 
program will increase by $21,900 as repayment funds are reinvested; and legal costs are 
budgeted to decrease by $130,000. 

Reserve funding is decreasing as funds collected in the rate for the Secondary Treatment Plant 
Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion project debt service is utilized for that purpose. 

Debt service requirements are $3,990,000 for prior year debt including the 2017 Revenue 
Bonds. 

The Capital Outlay effort for 2019 will be focused on the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 
and Recycled Water Expansion projects; however other equipment purchases, major repairs, 
planning for future projects and accumulation of funding for large projects will continue. 

Sincerely, 

Susan McGuire Chris DeGabriele 
Susan McGuire, CPA Chris DeGabriele, PE 
Administrative Services Manager Interim General Manager 

2.2



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 2 of 11 

Operating Revenue 

The District is in the fourth year of a five year rate increase based on the capital outlay plan adopted by the 
Board in June 2015.  The maximum rate for 2018/19 of $898 per equivalent dwelling unit, consistent with the 
five year rate plan, is utilized in preparing the proposed budget. 

Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (ERAF) are determined by state statute.  Special districts are 
allocated a certain amount of property tax revenues; however a portion is shifted from counties, cities, special 
districts, and redevelopment agencies to K-12 schools and community colleges.  The District is subject to 
ERAF I and II tax shifts, which are specified by the State, using population and other factors and are adjusted 
yearly per the incremental growth rate in assessed property tax values.  Staff has budgeted $320,000 based 
on projected 2017/18 receipts. 

Recycled water revenue is the estimated cost of providing water to North Marin Water District based on the 
projected costs for 2019. 

Inspections, Permits, and Application fees reflect projected revenue from inspecting laterals as required by the 
planned changes to the District’s Ordinance code.  These inspections are proposed to be performed by a new 
Engineering Tech/Inspector position.  The revenue is projected based on historical sales data for properties 
within the District for half the year. 

Franchise fees, bank interest, supplemental property taxes, and Home Owner Property Tax Relief funds are 
projected to remain the same which is consistent with prior year budgets.   

Interest on reserves, which are invested in the Bank of Marin and the Local Agency Investment Fund with the 
State of California, are expected to continue to yield low rates however they are increasing over prior years. 
As the District has built up cash for construction projects, the earnings have increased; however with the 
Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion projects proceeding with construction, 
staff expects reserves to be drawn down. 

The Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program began in July 2012; the budget reflects the projected 
repayments for 2019. 

Miscellaneous revenue is comprised of insurance policy dividends; staff is projecting that they will remain 
consistent in 2019 from the projected actual for 2018. 

Funds in excess of the amount needed to fund the Operating and Maintenance and Debt Service budgets are 
transferred to General Construction. 

Capacity Related Revenue 

Activity for remodel permits and second units has increased from prior years but larger projects are proceeding 
slowly.  Since the District is substantially built out and the pace of development is difficult to predict, staff is 
conservatively not budgeting any capital facility charges for 2019.  The interest income for this category is for 
existing funds on deposit, which have been substantially expended for capital projects.  

2.3



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 3 of 11 

General Construction Revenue 

Secured property taxes are calculated based on the value of real property, land and personal property, such as 
structures, located upon real property.  Secured property is taxed at a general rate of 1% of the assessed 
value.   Property tax projections for 2018 are expected to be higher than budgeted; for 2019 they are projected 
to be slightly higher than 2018 levels. 

Operating Transfer In consists of funds in excess of the amount needed to fund the Operating and 
Maintenance and Debt Service budgets. 

Other Sources of Funds 

Marin Municipal Water District entered into an agreement in March 2017, to buy into the existing capacity of 
the Recycled Water Treatment Facility as well as participating in the debt service of the 2017 Revenue Bonds 
associated with the estimated cost for the expansion of the facility.  These funds are allocated to the reserve 
funding for the cost of the project. 

Utilization of Bond Funds and Reserves  

The District has projects budgeted for 2017/18 which either will not begin prior to year end and are expected to 
proceed in 2018/19 or are accumulating funds over several years.  These projects are included in the Capital 
Outlay budget and the related funding which will carry forward from 2017/18. 

Transfers from the Bond Fund reflect projected interest income earned on the unspent proceeds. 

The graph on the following page shows the composition of District revenues for the past five fiscal years plus 
the projected 2018 and budget for 2019.

2.4



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 4 of 11 

 $‐

 $4,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $24,000,000

 $28,000,000

 $32,000,000

 $36,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
(Projected)

2019
(Budgeted)

Revenue Sources 2013 to 2019

Sewer Charge Property Taxes ERAF
Interest income Grants Recycled water
Lateral Assistance Prog. Reserves/Bond/Capacity Fund Other

2.5



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 5 of 11 

Operating and Maintenance Expenses 

Employee Expenses: 

Regular staff salaries are based on 2018 projected wages with a 2.5% cost of living increase as specified in 
the Memorandum of Understanding.  The overall budgeted increase is $73,000 which reflects the vacancy in 
the General Manager position for five months of the year; one new position in the engineering department to 
support projects and inspect laterals pursuant to the planned Ordinance code changes and a change in the 
Buildings and Grounds Maintenance position to a technical Equipment Maintenance position.  Scheduled 
step changes have been applied where appropriate. 

Extra hire is for staffing the Interim General Manager position during the transition to a permanent position. 

Overtime is estimated based on projected 2018 amounts and reflect additional staffing for storm events. 

Vacation and sick accrual is also estimated based on the prior three years trend; however it is difficult to 
predict how much time staff will accumulate rather than use. 

Stand by time is based on projected wages, the regular rotation of personnel on duty, and additional staff 
who are on call during storm events. 

Director salaries are projected based on the 2017 and 2018 amounts with a maximum 5% increase.  Board 
members have received the same per meeting compensation since 2008. 

Director benefits are based on the maximum allowance of $200 per month per eligible director. 

Social security tax is 7.65% of covered wages for all employees. 

Group life insurance and long term disability insurance are projected from year to date 2018 amounts with 
adjustments for changes in census data. 

CalPERS contributions are projected from regular wages with the anticipated employer contribution rate for 
2019.  Staff who became CalPERS members after 2013 are covered by a plan which requires a lesser 
retirement contributions by the District. 

Health insurance is projected based on the known rates for July through December 2018 and the 
application of the health trend rate of +8% for 2019.  Other Post-Employment Benefits are retiree health 
benefits for prior and current employees and is based on the actuarial valuation for the post-employment 
benefits dated January 1, 2017.   

Dental insurance is paid through a self-insured plan and is based on actual claims made. Since claim 
expenses vary from person to person and from year to year, the budget is based on the average of the 
prior three years. 

Vision insurance is a set amount and is projected based on current employees and projected new staff.  
Auto allowance and commute stipend are based on the known amounts for covered staff. 

2.6



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 6 of 11 

Insurance: 

Workers compensation insurance is based on projected wages for 2019 and application of the existing 
rates and a decrease in the experience modification factor based on lower District claims in the past two 
years. 

Unemployment insurance is paid based on claims made.  The District has not had a claim since 2004. 

Pooled liability insurance includes general liability and mobile equipment, billed separately.  The general 
liability insurance premium period is based on a calendar year and the mobile equipment on a fiscal year 
basis.  The liability insurance is the larger premium for which half of the yearly cost is known based on the 
current billing. The budget for 2019 is the same as 2018, without reduction for any retroactive adjustments.   

Fidelity bond for the cost of commercial crime insurance coverage is based on prior years. 

Repairs and Maintenance: 

Vehicle parts and maintenance is based on 2018 year to date results with adjustments for projected activity 
during the remainder of the fiscal year. 

Building maintenance consists of quarterly HVAC service and other routine maintenance. 

Grounds maintenance is budgeted based on hiring an outside firm to perform work now done by the 
current Buildings and Grounds Maintenance position. 

Power generation maintenance and repairs consists of work performed on the photo voltaic system, a 
maintenance contract for the BERS turbines, and maintenance of the CNG fill stations at the treatment 
plant and the pump station. 

Equipment maintenance and repair are expected to remain similar to 2019. The amounts for Captains 
Cove and Marin Lagoon are from the budgets for those developments. 

Capital repairs/replacements consist of items that are long-lived or life extending in nature but are not 
included in the capital improvements budget. They are either items that are capital in nature but the 
replacement/repair is not anticipated as part of the initial capital outlay budget or items such as small 
pumps and equipment with a cost under the $5,000 capitalization threshold.  There were two projects, the 
Primary Biofilter Feed Pump Replacement and Deep Bed Filter Valves and Effluent Pump Box Weir 
Replacements, during 2018 which were included for the treatment plant and are not expected to reoccur. 
These two projects cost $157,000. 

Other Operating Expenses: 

Chemical costs are estimated based on past usage with an increase for 2019. 

Pollution prevention program is contracted with Central Marin Sanitary Agency.  The budget is based on 
prior year experience and projected amounts for 2018.  

2.7



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 7 of 11 

Lab contract services are budgeted based on year to date 2018 charges for the treatment plant and the 
recycled water facility. 

Small tools are budgeted based on needed items and prior year expenditures for each individual 
department. 

Outside services consist of the cost of pagers, answering service, alarm system monitoring, security patrol, 
pre-employment screening, and portable restrooms in the reclamation area. Janitorial cost is projected 
based on adding one additional cleaning per week.  Uniform service is projected for 2019 based on current 
year costs. 

Aquatic review is conducted twice a year by contract. 

Damage claims are budgeted based on the maximum deductible for one sewer overflow claim for the year.   

Sludge Disposal is the cost for injecting digested biosolids in the District’s dedicated disposal site. The 
amount is based on prior year activity. 

Regulatory consultant budget is based on a proposal for 2019.  The budget appears substantially in excess 
of current year to date expenditures; however work performed in connection with the Secondary Treatment 
Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion projects is charged to the capital budget and not reflected in 
the year to date Operating and Maintenance Expense.  The costs incurred to date are 60% of the budgeted 
amount and the proposal for 2018-19 is approximately 5% less than 2017-18. 

Engineering consultant is an estimate by staff based on the average activity during recent years.  Some of 
this cost is reimbursed by project owners who apply for capacity. 

Consultants include costs for updating the strategic plan, implementing the Canada goose management 
plan, the biennial actuarial valuation for the Other Post Employment Benefit Plan, recruiting for a general 
manager, performance of a compensation and classification study, and labor relations.   

General operating supplies are budgeted by department based on prior year trends. 

Utility power is for the treatment plant and the pump stations.  For the pump stations, a small increase is 
budgeted for converting to the Deep Green alternative with MCE.  For the treatment plant, the budget 
includes charges in excess of any rebates due to power consumption required for construction. 

Telephone and water are budgeted based on year to date 2018 costs. 

Fuel and oil budget is based on year to date 2018.  Diesel usage has decreased with the utilization of the 
CNG powered vehicle for Collections.   

Safety equipment and supplies and safety services are budgeted based on equipment needs and the 
proposal for 2018.  

Lateral rehab assistance program is budgeted based on the amount in the 2019 rate plus reinvestment of 
the projected repayments from existing agreements. 

2.8



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

        Page 8 of 11 

 
General and Administrative: 
 
Conferences and mileage/travel are budgeted based on year to date 2018 activity. 
 
Election costs are incurred if more than three people run for the three seats up for election. 
 
Office supplies and expense is budgeted based on annualizing 2018 activity.  
 
Computer support and supplies includes annual software renewals, the replacement of computers as 
needed and outside computer network support.  The District is using more software from outside vendors 
which has increased the cost. 
 
User charge collection fee is charged by the County of Marin for collecting the property taxes and sanitary 
sewer service charges on the tax rolls. Staff is projecting the amount based on 2018 rates. 
 
Publications and legal ads are for contract/public bidding advertising, chemical procurement, public 
hearings, and recruiting. 
 
Public education and outreach is for the joint efforts with other Marin County sewage treatment agencies, 
web site maintenance, the request by STRAW for funding, special mailings and for the District’s newsletter 
and annual sewer rate change mailings.  
 
Taxes, other is the annual LAFCO charge and is based on the projected 2019 charge. 
 
Memberships and permits are based on the 2018 invoices with an increase for some permits. 
 
Rents and leases for administration are costs for the lease of the postage machine, off-site records 
storage, railroad easements and copiers. Rents and leases for pumpstations are for portable stand by 
generators for storm events. 
 
Legal expense is projected to decrease from 2018 activity as certain personnel matters and legal issues 
concerning the treatment plant upgrade are anticipated to be resolved. 
 
Audit expense is based on the 2017 request for proposals which covers three years of audit engagements.  
 
Employee recognition is based on year to date and projected 2018 activity. 
 
Employee training and education includes the cost for the District to participate in the Liebert Cassidy 
Whitmore employment relations consortium and other offsite training.  The District expects to continue to 
send staff for training in 2018.  Continued training for staff development is budgeted in the consultant 
category. 
  

2.9



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 9 of 11 

Reserves

 Working Cash Flow and Undesignated Capital reserves are budgeted based on the target balance
established in 2009 and increase each year by 5%.

 The Capital Reserves for the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion
projects are based on the actual payment required to service the 2017 Revenue Bonds and the
amount that was included in the five year rate increase.  These funds will be used to pay for the
project expenses.

 Captains Cove and Marin Lagoon reserves are the excess of special assessments over projected
operations, maintenance and capital expenditures which are collected for these developments.

 MMWD Debt Reimbursement reserves are the amounts MMWD is paying to the District for the buy-
in for the existing recycled water treatment plant and the allocated share of the 2017 Revenue
Bonds for the expansion project.

Debt Service 

The District has five issuances of debt outstanding.  They are as follows: 

 Certificates of Participation (COP) with an original principal amount of $10,000,000, which were
issued in 2005, and have annual principal and interest payments through December 2025.  The
District refinanced them at a reduced interest rate of 3.3% which will save interest over the
remaining life and will result in lower annual payments.  The principal balance remaining is
scheduled to be $4,978,800 as of July 1, 2018.

 State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) was a construction loan which originated in 2010 and was
completely drawn down in 2012.  The original principal amount was $4,314,750 with annual
principal and interest payments through June 2032.  The interest rate is 2.7%.  The principal
balance remaining is scheduled to be $3,291,573 as of July 1, 2018.

 Bank of Marin Loan which originated in 2011 with a principal amount of $4,600,000.  Monthly
principal and interest payments are due through June 2031.  The interest rate is 3.88%.  The
principal balance remaining is scheduled to be $3,380,752 as of July 1, 2018.

 Bank of Marin Loan which originated in 2012 with a principal amount of $2,000,000.  Monthly
principal and interest payments are due through August 2022.  The interest rate is 3.25%.  The
principal balance remaining is scheduled to be $915,028 as of July 1, 2018.

 2017 Revenue Bonds were issued in April 2017 with a principal amount of $38,365,000.  The true
interest rate to maturity is 3.298476%.  Annual principal and interest payments are due through
April 2042.  The principal balance remaining is scheduled to be $36,647,700 as of July 1, 2018.

The debt service does not reflect the reimbursement to be received from MMWD for buying into the 
existing recycled water treatment facility or their portion of the 2017 Revenue Bonds.  The payments to be 
received from MMWD are transferred to the reserves budget. 

2.10



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 10 of 11 

Capital Outlay 

The Capital Outlay budget contains projects specifically identified in the Five Year plan for 2015/2016 
through 2019/2020 plus miscellaneous capital needs that change yearly.  See the separate Capital Outlay 
Budget for the list of projects and summary descriptions. 

s:\accounting\budget\2018-19 budget\preliminary budget memo 2018-19 05 24 2018.docx 

2.11



Las	Gallinas	Valley	Sanitary	District	
Preliminary	Budget	2018‐19	

Page 11 of 11 

The following is a graph showing the composition of District expenditures for the past nine fiscal years plus the budget for 2019. 

 $‐

 $4,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $24,000,000

 $28,000,000

 $32,000,000

 $36,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Expenditures 2010 to 2019
Capital Outlay

Reserves

Debt Service

Operating and
Maintenance

Note: 2018 amounts  are based on the budget adopted December 14, 2017.
2019 amounts  are based on the preliminary budget.

2.12



Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 May 10, 2018 

MINUTES OF MAY 10, 2018 1 

2 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT MET IN OPEN 3 
SESSION ON MAY 10, 2018, AT 4:03 PM,  AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE, 300 SMITH RANCH ROAD, 4 
SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA. 5 

6 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: M. Clark, R. Elias, R. Greenfield, C. Murray and J. 7 

Schriebman 8 
9 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None. 10 

11 
STAFF PRESENT: Chris DeGabriele, Interim General Manager; Mike 12 

Cortez, District Engineer –  Both present for Closed 13 
Session; Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 14 

15 
OTHERS PRESENT: David Byers, District Counsel 16 

17 
ANNOUNCEMENT: President Clark announced that the agenda had been 18 

posted as evidenced by the certification on file in 19 
accordance with the law 20 

21 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 22 

23 
ADJOURNMENT: 24 

25 
ACTION: 26 

27 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT ADJOURNED TO 28 
CLOSED SESSION ON MAY 10,  2018, AT 4:05 P.M., AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE, 300 SMITH RANCH ROAD, 29 
SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA. 30 

31 
Lerch left at 4:05 p.m. 32 

33 
CLOSED SESSION: 34 

35 
CONFERENCE WITH  REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to Government Code 36 
§ 54956.8 Regarding Assessor Parcel Numbers: 155-121-14, 155-121-15, 155-121-16, 155-121-17, 155-37 
121-18, 155-121-30, 155-011-11 and 155-011-12. Real Property Negotiators are the Interim General 38 
Manager and the District Counsel.  District may negotiate with representatives of the Silveira family. 39 
Under negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment. 40 

41 
ADJOURNMENT: 42 

43 
ACTION: 44 
The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District reconvened the Regular Session on 45 
May 10, 2018 at 4:34 pm. 46 

47 
STAFF PRESENT: Mike Cortez, District Engineer; Sahar Golshani, 48 

Environmental Services Director; Teresa Lerch, District 49 
Secretary; Susan McGuire, District Treasurer; Greg 50 
Pease, Collection System/Safety Manager 51 

52 
OTHERS PRESENT: None 53 

54 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Two members of the public spoke to the Board. 55 

56 

Agenda item 3A
May 24, 2018

3A.1



Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 May 10, 2018 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: 57 
President Clark reported that there were no reportable actions in Closed Session. 58 

59 
MARIN SCHOOL OF ENVIRONMENTAL LEADERSHIP PRESENTATION 60 
Students from Marin School of Environmental Leadership did a presentation on Microbeads for the Board. 61 
Discussion ensued. 62 

63 
ACTION: 64 
Board approved (M/S Clark/Schriebman 5-0-0-0) a $1,000. Donation towards the Marin School of 65 
Environmental Leadership microbead project. 66 

      AYES: Clark, Elias, Greenfield, Murray and Schriebman 67 
NOES: None. 68 
ABSENT:  None. 69 
ABSTAIN: None. 70 

71 
Golshani left at 5:05 p.m. 72 

73 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  74 
These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for 75 
removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 76 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for April 26, 2018. 77 
B. Approve the Warrant List for May 10, 2018. 78 
C. Approve Board Compensation for April  2018. 79 
D. Approve Conference Attendance for Megan Clark, Russ Greenfield and Craig Murray – 80 

 CASA Annual Conference August 8-10, 2018 in Monterey. 81 
E. Approve 2017-2018 Third Quarter Financial Statements as of March 31, 2018. 82 
F. Approve Interim General Manager Authority to Approve WRA for Lower Miller Creek 5-Year Monitoring 83 

and Reporting Services. 84 
G. Approve Resolution 2018-2124 – A Resolution Accepting the Primary Biofilter Feed Pump #1 85 

Replacement. 86 
87 

Items B and F were discussed. 88 
89 

ACTION: 90 
Board approved (M/S Murray/Clark 5-0-0-0) the Consent Calendar Items A-G. 91 

      AYES: Clark, Elias, Greenfield, Murray and Schriebman 92 
NOES: None. 93 
ABSENT:  None. 94 
ABSTAIN: None. 95 

96 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE 174  AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 7 OF TITLE 1  TO THE 97 
ORDINANCE  CODE OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 98 
Board discussed setting a public hearing for Ordinance 174 – An Ordinance adding Chapter 7 of Title 1 to 99 
the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District to provide informal bidding procedures 100 
under the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act. 101 

102 
ACTION: 103 
Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Murray 5-0-0-0) setting the public hearing for Thursday, June 28, 2018 104 
to review Ordinance 174 adding Chapter 7 of Title 1 to the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley 105 
Sanitary District to provide informal bidding procedures under the Uniform Public Construction Cost 106 
Accounting Act. 107 

AYES: Clark, Elias, Greenfield, Murray and Schriebman 108 
NOES: None. 109 
ABSENT:  None. 110 
ABSTAIN: None. 111 

3A.2



Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 May 10, 2018 

112 
ACTION CALENDAR: 113 

A. Approve Request for Proposals for Executive Search Services. McGuire reported. Discussion 114 
ensued. 115 

ACTION: 116 
Board approved (M/S Murray/Greenfield 5-0-0-0) Request for Proposals for Executive Search Services. 117 

      AYES: Clark, Elias, Greenfield, Murray and Schriebman. 118 
      NOES: None. 119 
      ABSENT:  None. 120 
      ABSTAIN: None. 121 

122 

B. Consider Participation in North Bay Water and North Bay Drought Contingency Plan. 123 
DeGabriele reported. Discussion ensued. 124 

125 
ACTION: 126 
Board approved (M/S Schreibman/Elias 4-1-0-0 Participation in North Bay Water and North Bay Drought 127 
Contingency Plan. 128 

         AYES: Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman. 129 
         NOES: Greenfield. 130 
        ABSENT:  None. 131 
        ABSTAIN: None. 132 

133 

INFORMATION ITEMS: 134 
STAFF / CONSULTANT REPORTS: 135 

1. Interim General Manager Report – Verbal – DeGabriele reported.136 
2. Lateral Specifications/Lateral Inspection Ordinance Progress Update – Written – DeGabriele and Pease137 

reported. Discussion ensued.138 
139 

Cortez left at 6:50 p.m. 140 
Byers and Pease left at 6:10 p.m. 141 

142 
BOARD REPORTS: 143 

1. Human Resources Subcommittee – Verbal – Clark and Murray reported. Discussion ensued.144 
2. LAFCO –  Verbal – Murray reported.145 
3. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council – Verbal – Schriebman reported.146 
4. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal – Greenfield reported.147 
5. NBWA – Written – Schriebman reported.148 
6. NBWRA/North Bay Water – Verbal – See Action item B above.149 
7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal – no report.150 
8. Other Reports –Verbal –  Clark mentioned that Laurette Rogers from STRAW invited the Board to visit151 

tomorrow. Murray gave an update on the Marin County Disaster Council.152 
153 

BOARD REQUESTS: 154 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – none. 155 
B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Schriebman requested a letter or possibly an article be written on 156 

Permethrin. DeGabriele will follow up. The Board requested that Deep Green Energy be on a future 157 
agenda. 158 

159 
VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE: 160 
Discussion ensued.  161 

162 
163 
164 
165 
166 

3A.3



Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 May 10, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT: 167 
168 

ACTION: 169 
Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Murray 5-0-0-0) the adjournment of the meeting at 6:46 p.m. in 170 
memory of Art Reichert, who was active in the Gallinas Watershed Council and many other community 171 
service projects. 172 

AYES: Clark, Elias, Greenfield, Murray and Schriebman. 173 
NOES: None. 174 
ABSENT:    None. 175 
ABSTAIN: None. 176 

177 
The next Board Meeting is scheduled for May 24, 2018

 
at the District Office. 178 

179 
ATTEST: 180 

181 
182 

_________________________________ 183 
Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 184 

185 
186 
187 

APPROVED: 188 
189 
190 

____________________________________ 191 
Craig Murray, Board Vice-President 192 

193 
SEAL 194 

3A.4



3B.1



3B.2



3C.1



3C.2



3C.3



3C.4



3C.5



3C.6



3C.7



3C.8



3C.9



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\Approve Maintenance Services for the BioCNG Digester Gas Conditioning 
Equipment.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Chris DeGabriele, PE, Interim General Manager 

From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

Mtg. Date: May 24, 2018 

Re: Approve Interim General Manager Authority to Approve Maintenance Services for 
the BioCNG Digester Gas Conditioning Equipment Package 

BACKGROUND: 

The Biogas Energy Recovery System (BERS) is substantially complete and has been functioning properly 
as designed with the exception of the backup boiler and CNG fill station, which are currently being 
addressed by the contractor. A critical component of the BERS is the Digester Gas Conditioning 
Equipment Package (BioCNG skid) pre-purchased by the District from BioCNG, LLC in 2015. The BioCNG 
skid is necessary to condition digester gas for the microturbines, and further enhances excess conditioned 
gas to Renewable Natural Gas (RNG) for the onsite CNG vehicle fill station and backup boiler.  

In response to staff request, BioCNG has submitted a proposal in the amount of $15,000 to perform the 
following services: 

 Initial and semi-annual performance optimization visits consisting of:
o Inspection of BioCNG skid and fine-tuning of control settings.
o Review of programming logic and system operation, production data and run time, and

shutdown alarms and other operational issues.
o Sampling of gas streams with portable gas meter to confirm accuracy of onsite meter.
o Sampling of waste gas stream to confirm filter membrane integrity.

 The proposal includes optional on-call assistance on a Time and Materials (T&M) as needed basis
not to exceed $5,000. BioCNG anticipates that the majority of the requests for assistance can be
assessed and responded to remotely using the LGVSD’s Virtual Private Network (VPN), thus
reducing the need for travel expenses.

This agreement, including the microturbines maintenance agreement with Cal Microturbine, and a future 
maintenance agreement for both the onsite and Smith Ranch CNG vehicle fill stations, will comprise the 
necessary annual maintenance agreements by specialty contractors for the overall BERS facility. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Interim General Manager Authority to Approve Maintenance Services for the BioCNG Digester 
Gas Conditioning Equipment Package. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$15,000 plus $5,000 on T&M Basis as needed 

PERSON(S) TO BE NOTIFIED:  

BioCNG, LLC 

Consent _________3D_____

Staff/Consultant Reports______________ 

Agenda Item ______________ 

D   ate    May 24, 2018

3D.1



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\Award of Contract - Gregory Equipment Inc. - UV Piping Repair.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Chris DeGabriele, PE, Interim General Manager 

From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

Mtg. Date: May 24, 2018 

Re: Award of Contract for UV Piping Repair to Gregory Equipment Inc. 

BACKGROUND: 

On May 15, 2018, the District opened bids for the UV Piping Repair project, and Gregory Equipment Inc. of 
Redding is the sole bidder at $158,743. 

Staff has reviewed the set of bidding documents to determine if it was overly restrictive: i.e., if only one 
contractor could meet the requirements, however, staff found that the plans and specifications are typical 
for projects of this nature, and other contractors could have met the bidding requirements. 

Staff has evaluated the bids and found that Gregory Equipment Inc. is a responsive and responsible 
bidder. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Interim General Manager Authority to Approve the Award of Contract to Gregory Equipment Inc. 
for the UV Piping Repair project in the amount of $158,743. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$158,743 

PERSON(S) TO BE NOTIFIED: 

Steve Gregory, Gregory Equipment Inc. 

Consent ______3E________

Staff/Consultant Report ______________ 

Agenda Item ______________ 

D   ate    May 24, 2018

3E.1



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\ASR for  FY 18-19- Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Chris DeGabriele, Interim General Manager 

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  

Mtg. Date: May 24, 2018 

Re: Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite.. 

BACKGROUND: 

As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium hypochlorite for the twelve month 
period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 from the BACC administrating agency, The Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium Hypochlorite is used for disinfection to remain in compliance with the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit requirements and also to maintain disinfection in the recycled 
water distribution system. 

In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium hypochlorite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. DSRSD 
received bids from two vendors; Univar USA Inc. and Olin Corporation. The BACC bid review document 
revealed that Univar USA Inc. was the lowest responsive bid for the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. Olin 
Corp.’s bid was responsive but not the lowest priced for the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. 

BACC 2018-19 
Bid Tabulation 

 Bidder  Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $0.665 

Olin Corporation $0.739 

BACC 2017-18 
Bid Tabulation 

 Bidder  Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $0.549 

Olin Corporation $0.569 

Hasa Incorporated $0.876 

Sierra Chemical Co. $2.000 

Consent _____3F_________

Staff/Consultant Reports______________ 

Agenda Item ______________ 

D   ate    May 24, 2018

3F.1



 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\ASR for  FY 18-19- Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 13-2018 for Supply and 
Delivery of 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite addressed to Univar USA Inc. was received from DSRSD on May 
3, 2018. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies to contact Univar USA Inc. to arrange for purchasing 
sodium hypochlorite (12.5%) for period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite (12.5% Concentration) 
during the twelve month period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The draft FY-17-18 budget for sodium hypochlorite is $53,000 for the treatment plant and recycled water 
facility 
 
 
PERSON TO BE NOTIFIED:  
 
Univar USA, Inc. 

3F.2



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\ASR for  FY 18-19 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Chris DeGabriele, General Manager 

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  

Mtg. Date: May 24, 2018 

Re: Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite. 

BACKGROUND: 

As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium bisulfite for the twelve month 
period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 from the BACC administrating agency, The Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium bisulfite is used for de-chlorination of plant effluent disinfected with 
sodium hypochlorite to remain in compliance with the Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit 
requirements. 

The DSRSD received bids from two vendors, Univar USA Inc. and Chemurgic. The BACC bid review 
document revealed that Univar USA Inc. was the lowest responsive bid and the Chemurgic and Brenntag 
bids were found to be incomplete and not the lowest.  

BACC 2018 
Bid Tabulation 

 Bidder  Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $1.057 

Chemurgic $1.350 

Brenntag no bid for 25% solution 

BACC 2016 
Bid Tabulation 

Bidder  Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $0.969 

Chemurgic $1.180 

A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 11-2018 for Supply and 
Delivery of 25% Sodium Bisulfite addressed to Univar USA Inc. was received from The Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD) on May 3, 2018. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies to contact Univar 
USA Inc. to arrange for purchasing sodium bisulfite (25%) for period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.   

Consent _______3G_______

Staff/Consultant Reports______________ 

Agenda Item ______________ 

D   ate    May 24, 2018

3G.1



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\ASR for  FY 18-19 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 2 of 2 

The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Univar Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite (25% Concentration) during the 
twelve month period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The draft FY-17-18 budgeted amount for sodium bisulfite is $46,000 

PERSON TO BE NOTIFIED: 

Univar USA, Inc. 

3G.2



3H.1



3H.2



3H.3



3H.4



3H.5



3H.6



3H.7



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\ASR for Bid Award Recommendation-Biosolids & Sludge Injection 2018-19.docxPage 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: 

From: 

Mtg. Date: 

Re: 

Chris DeGabriele, Interim General Manager 

Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  

May 24, 2018 

Bid Award to Custom Tractor Service for Biosolids Removal and Surface

Injection for FY 2018-2019 

BACKGROUND: 

The District’s NPDES Permit allows for surface injection of biosolids at the District’s dedicated biosolids 
disposal site.  Approximately 1,000,000 gallons of biosolids are removed annually from the District’s 
Sludge Lagoons and land applied via surface injection.   The District utilizes professional services to 
perform this disposal.  District staff has developed a service contract which identifies the specifications for 
this work which includes an additional 500,000 gallons of biosolids removal and injection if needed.  This 
work is seasonally influenced and will be performed during the District’s “Reclamation Season”, typically 
May through October. 

A single bid from Custom Tractor Services Inc. was received during the call for bids period.  The Bid was 
officially opened and read at 10:47 a.m. on May 18th, 2018 with the following result recorded: 

Custom Tractor Services Inc. $70,500.00 

A thorough review of the bid submission revealed that Custom Tractor Services Inc. currently has Exhibit D 
(District Insurance Requirements) on file with the District. The bidder did not submit Exhibit E (Service 
Provider Professional Team).  However, the lone bidder has an established history with the District as the 
supplier for these services.  The District is aware that the professional services team for Custom Tractor 
Services Inc. is the owner/operator (Neal Carstenson). Custom Tractor Services Inc. submitted a signed 
copy of Exhibit F (Contractor/Service Provider Safe Work Requirements) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Award bid to Custom Tractor Services, waiving the minor irregularity, for supplying professional services 
for biosolids removal and surface injection from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$70,500  

PERSON TO BE NOTIFIED:  

Neal Carstensen of Custom Tractor Services Inc. 

Consent _____3I_________

Staff/Consultant Reports ______________ 

Agenda Item______________ 

D   ate    May 24, 2018

3I.1



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\Agenda Item -Interim General Manager Report.docx 

5/24/2018 

Interim General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting
 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

AGENDA ITEM  4A1

4A1.1



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts

April 30, 2018 March 31, 2018
Change from 

Previous Month

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts
Bank of Marin

Operating 219,353$            169,958$            49,395$              
Operating Sweep 275,676              131,140              144,536              
Zero Balance 17,957 7,385 10,572 
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 108,103              109,550              (1,447) 
Surcharge-Captains Cove 19,526 30,911 (11,385) 
Connection Fee 25,294 25,290 4 
Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 169,360              179,924              (10,564) 
Capital Project Reserve Fund 2,194,324           2,194,203           121 
Liquid Savings 2,791,932           889,672              1,902,260           

Petty cash 1,060 1,107 (47) 
Investment Accounts

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 585,753              585,753              - 
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 293,480              293,480              - 
Local Agency Investment Fund 20,781,281         17,710,008         3,071,273           

Cash and Investments 27,483,099$       22,328,381$       5,154,718$         

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts

Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District. 

The April installment of sewer user charge collections, property taxes and ERAF funds were received.
Funds in excess of projected cash flow requirements for two to three months were transferred to the Local Agency
Investment Fund to maximize interest earnings.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
February 23, 2017  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 

have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Susan McGuire Reviewed by: Chris DeGabriele
Susan McGuire, CPA Administrative Services Manager Chris DeGabriele, PE Interim General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

For the month of April 2018

Accounts Summary

S:\ACCOUNTING\Monthly Report\2018\Cash balances.xlsx

4A2.1

Agenda item 4A2
May 24, 2018



I. Summary of Bond Accounts and Cumulative Activities Since Inception

Starting 
Balance 

4/28/2017

Total 
Activities 

Since 
Inception

Ending 
Balance 

4/30/2018

1 Bond Project Fund 41,000,000$ (909,530)$    (a) 40,090,470$ 
2 Cost of Issuance Fund 193,121        (193,111)      10 
3 Bond Payment Fund - 94 94 

Total 41,193,121$ (1,102,547)$ 40,090,574$ 

(a) Funds drawn to reimburse project costs were transferred to the Capital Project

Reserve Fund.

II. Accounts Details for the month of March 31, 2018

1 Bond Project Fund
Beginning Balance April 1, 2018 39,941,862$ 
Interest income from Local Area Investment Fund (LAIF)

estimated annual yield of 1.51% 148,608        

Ending Project Fund Balance at April 30, 2018 40,090,470$ 

2 Cost of Issuance Fund
Beginning Balance April 1, 2018 6$  
Funds transferred to Bond Payment Fund for scheduled

principal and interest payment - 
Interest income from US Bank estimated to be

 an annual yield of 2.0% 4 

Ending Cost of Issuance Fund Balance at April 30, 2018 10$               

3 Bond Payment Fund
Beginning Balance April 1, 2018 1,717,300$   
Funds transferred to pay the scheduled principal and

interest payment due (1,717,300)    
Interest income from US Bank estimated to be

 a 2.0% for annual yield 94 

Ending Bond Payment Fund Balance at April 30, 2018 94$               

Accounts Summary

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - 2017 Revenue Bonds

For the month of April 2018

S:\ACCOUNTING\Monthly Report\2018\Cash balances.xlsx

4A2.2



       AGENDA ITEM   4B1-4B8 
       DATE                May 24, 2018 

 
5/24/2018 BOARD REPORTS 

 

 

Agenda Item 4B1 
 

Human Resources Subcommittee 
□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B2 
 

LAFCO 
 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B3 
 

Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek Watershed Council 
 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B4 
JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste 

 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B5 

NBWA 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
□ Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B6 
NBWRA/North Bay Water 

 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B7 
Engineering Subcommittee 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 4B8 
 

Other Reports  
□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 
 

4B1-4B8.1



4B5.1



4B5.2



4B5.3



4B5.4



4B5.5



AGENDA ITEM________5A_____________
DATE  5/24/2018_________________ 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. and 

returning on _______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Please submit to the District Administrative Assistant, no later than 2:00 p.m. on the 

Friday prior to the Board Meeting.  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

For Office Use Only 

Request was □Approved  □Not Approved at the Board Meeting held on __________. 

5A.1



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2018\Agenda Scans 2018\05242018\Board Packet\Agenda Item - Board Requests.docx 

 

5/24/2018 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 5B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

5B.1



6.1



6.2



6.3



6.4



6.5



6.6


	agenda05242018
	2 Preliminary Budget 2018-19
	3A Board Minutes 05102018
	3B Warrant List
	3C EOA Contract Proposal
	3D Maintenance Service BioCNG Digester
	3E Award of Contract UV Piping Repair
	3F Award for Sodium Hypochlorite
	3G  Award for Sodium Bisulfite
	3H SCADA Support Services
	3I Bid Award-Biosolids & Sludge Injection 2018-19
	4A1 Interim General Manager Report
	4A2 April Treasurer report
	4B1-4B8 Board Reports
	4B5 NBWA
	5A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	5B Board Requests
	6 Various Articles and Dist Correspondence



